CABINET

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on Monday, 5 October 2020 remotely via Zoom at 10.00 am

Committee

Members Present:

Mr A Brown Mrs S Bütikofer (Chair)

Mrs A Fitch-Tillett Ms V Gay
Mr G Hayman Mr R Kershaw

Mr E Seward

Members also attending:

Cllr C Cushing Cllr N Dixon Cllr J Rest

Officers in Attendance:

Chief Executive, Democratic Services Manager, Head of Legal & Monitoring Officer, Head of Finance and Asset Management/Section 151 Officer, The Policy & Performance Manager and the Democratic

Services and Governance Officer (Scrutiny)

Apologies for Absence:

Mr N Lloyd

47 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 7th September 2020 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman, subject to Cllrs Dixon and Toye being added to the attendance list.

48 PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS

None received.

49 ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

None.

50 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

51 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS

The Chairman reminded Members that they could ask questions during the meeting as issues arose.

Cllr A Fitch-Tillett, Portfolio Holder for Coast, said that she wished to record her

thanks to everyone who had helped clear up the sand at Walcott following the recent storm. The huge effort made by everyone involved was much appreciated.

52 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CABINET WORKING PARTIES

The Chairman invited the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Cllr A Brown, to introduce this item. Cllr Brown referred Members to the recommendations which related to a revised policy approach regarding 'Housing mix' (Policy HOU 2).

It was proposed by Cllr A Brown, seconded by Cllr V Gay and

RESOLVED

To approve the recommendations from the Planning Policy & Built Heritage Working Party meeting of 14th September 2020.

53 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MATTERS

Cllr N Dixon, Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, said that there were no formal recommendations for Cabinet. However, he referred to the North Walsham Town Centre Public Realm Improvements report that had been considered at the last meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and said that the Committee felt that there did not appear to be any clear measurable outcomes for this project. The Head of Economic and Community Growth had reassured the committee that he would work with the North Walsham Heritage Action Zone Working Party to develop 'SMART' objectives that would sit alongside the project and enable Members to measure it's progress.

54 DELIVERY PLAN - RE-PRIORITISATION DUE TO COVID

The Leader introduced this item. She explained the work of the Council had been significantly impacted by the response to the pandemic, which was ongoing. Consequently, the Delivery Plan had been revisited and key aims and objectives had been prioritised so it was clear where the Council would be focussing efforts in the coming months.

Cllr Cushing referred to the Equality & Diversity Policy which was referenced in the report. He said that at the meeting of Full Council in December 2019, it was acknowledged that the current policy was out of date and it was referred to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee for review. He asked what progress had been made on this. The Leader asked Cllr Dixon, Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee to respond. Cllr Dixon replied that when it came to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee in February 2020, it was agreed to add the matter to its work programme. It was agreed that the policy should be reviewed and revised by Cabinet before coming through to the Committee for scrutiny. He added that the Scrutiny Officer had not been able to establish the current status of this piece of work. The Leader said that she would look into this and provide a response to Cllr Cushing as soon as possible. She referred to a recent query from a member of the public regarding the Council's adoption of the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance (IHRA) definition of anti-semitism, which had also been agreed at the December meeting of Full Council. Cllr Dixon said that the wording of the full definition should be carried forward and included in the revised Equality & Diversity Policy.

The Chief Executive added that the revision of the Equality & Diversity Policy had

not been a priority during the pandemic but it was still a key issue and would be progressed in the coming months.

It was proposed by Cllr S Butikofer, seconded by Cllr R Kershaw and

RESOLVED:

To confirm the revised Delivery Plan priorities as detailed in the report.

Reason for the decision:

To reflect the changed circumstances in which the Council is operating at the present time in seeking to balance its Corporate Plan priorities against the ongoing COVID situation in which the Council is having to operate.

55 MANAGING PERFORMANCE Q1 2020/21

The Leader introduced this report. She informed Members that there was a new performance management system in place and it was anticipated that this would be beneficial as it was much easier to use than the previous system. She acknowledged that some of the measures were not where they should be due to the pandemic. She added that although some targets had not been achieved, this was due to officers being redeployed into other areas to respond to the impact of the pandemic. It was hoped to make significant progress in the coming weeks to catch up in the areas that had been impacted.

Cllr Cushing referred to the timing of the report. He queried why the quarter 1 report was coming through now and suggested that it should have come through to the August meeting of Cabinet. He added that it was now 17 months since the Administration was elected and queried why it had taken so long for the performance report to be collated. The Leader referred Cllr Cushing to her opening comments regarding the implementation of a new system. She asked the Performance Management Officer to outline the timing of the reports. The Performance Management Officer replied that quarter 3 was just starting and the report on the first quarter was only one month late. She said that a combination of the implementation of a new performance management system, the introduction of the Delivery Plan and then Covid 19 had led to the delay. The Leader confirmed that the reports would be back on schedule going forward.

Cllr J Rest said that the report was much easier to read now. He referred to the two shift working pattern and home working that had been introduced at the end of March 2020 and asked whether this had contributed to the report being later than usual. The Head of IT replied that for a very short period of time, when the pandemic began, there was a need to introduce a two shift working pattern to ensure that the Council's bandwidth could cope. The network was upgraded as soon as possible and staff reverted to a normal working pattern. The effectiveness of working from home had been very good and it was unlikely to have impacted on the production of performance data.

It was proposed by Cllr S Butikofer, seconded by Cllr A Brown and

RESOLVED:

To note the report and endorse the actions being taken by Strategic Leadership Team detailed in Appendix A – Managing Performance.

	To ensure the objectives of the Council are achieved.		
56	EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC		
57	PRIVATE BUSINESS		
The meeting ended at 10.24 am.			
			Chairman

Reason for the decision: